Latin II

Test Review, Chapters 28-37

November 18th 2008

The test will cover the following items:

	· Deponent Verbs

· The Superlative and Comparative Degrees

· Uses of the Word “quam”
	· Roman Dates and Years

· Vocabulary from Chapters 34-37 




Deponent Verbs


Deponents are verbs with active meanings but passive forms.  They literally have “put down” (depono, -ere, deposui, depositus = “to put down”) their active forms.  Deponent verbs only have three principle parts.  Below is a example of a conjugated deponent verb:

sequor sequi, secutus sum = to follow

	Present Tense
	Singular
	Meaning
	Plural
	Meaning

	First Person

Second Person

Third Person
	sequor

sequeris

sequitur
	= I follow

= you follow

= he / she / it follows
	sequimur

sequimini

sequuntur
	= we follow

= you follow

= they follow


	Imperfect
	Singular
	Meaning
	Plural
	Meaning

	First Person

Second Person

Third Person
	sequebar

sequebaris

sequebatur
	= I was following

= you were following

= he / she was following
	sequebamur

sequebamini

sequebantur
	= we were following

= you were following

= they were following


	Future
	Singular
	Meaning
	Plural
	Meaning

	1st Person

2nd Person

3rd Person
	sequar

sequeris

sequetur
	= I will follow

= you will follow

= he / she will follow
	sequemur

sequemini

sequentur
	= we’ll have followed

= you’ll have followed

= they’ll have followed



Notice that the present and future tense second person singular forms above are identical.

	Perfect Tense
	Singular
	Meaning
	Plural
	Meaning

	First Person

Second Person

Third Person
	secutus sum

secutus es

secutus est
	= I have followed

= you have followed

= he has followed
	secuti sumus

secuti estis

secuti sunt
	= we have followed

= you have followed

= they have followed


	Pluperfect
	Singular
	Meaning
	Plural
	Meaning

	First Person

Second Person

Third Person
	secutus eram

secutus eras

secutus erat
	= I had followed

= you had followed

= he had followed
	secuti eramus

secuti eratis

secuti erant
	= we had followed

= you had followed

= they had followed


	Fut. Perfect
	Singular
	Meaning
	Plural
	Meaning

	1st Person

2nd Person

3rd Person
	secutus ero

secutus eris

secutus erit
	= I’ll have followed

= you’ll have followed

= he’ll have followed
	secuti erimus

secuti eritis

secuti erunt
	= we’ll have followed

= you’ll have followed

= they’ll have followed



Deponent verbs exist in all four conjugations and are considered “regular verbs”.  This is because their endings (although passive) are regular.  

The reason why deponents only have three principle parts is because in a regular verb the third principle part is used to form the prefect active system and the fourth principle parts forms the perfect passive system.  Since deponents have no active forms only one of these is needed.

The Comparative and Superlative Degrees of Adjectives


You’ve already seen how their are two types of adjectives.  Some (like laetus, -a, -um = “happy”) use endings from the first and second noun declensions.  These adjectives are thus called “mixed declension adjectives:

	
	Singular
	Plural

	
	Masculine
	Feminine
	Neuter
	Masculine
	Feminine
	Neuter

	Nominative

Genitive

Dative

Accusative

Ablative
	laetus

laeti

laeto

laetum

laeto
	laeta

laetae

laetae

laetam

laeta
	laetum

laeti

laeto

laetum

laeto
	laeti

laetorum

laetis

laetos

laetis
	laetae

laetarum

laetis

laetas

laetis
	laeta

laetorum

laetis

laeta

laetis


Other adjectives (like tristis, -is, -e = “sad”) take third declension endings:

	
	Singular
	Plural

	
	Masculine
	Feminine
	Neuter
	Masculine
	Feminine
	Neuter

	Nominative

Genitive

Dative

Accusative

Ablative
	tristis

tristis

tristi

tristem

tristi
	tristis

tristis

tristi

tristem

tristi
	triste

tristis

tristi

trist

tristi
	tristes

tristium

tristibus

tristes

tristibus
	tristes

tristium

tristibus

tristes

tristibus
	tristia

tristium

tristibus

tristia

tristibus



Both types of adjectives are in the positive degree.  Degree is a quality adjective and adverbs have.  There are three degrees; the positive shows the presence of a quality (from positus “placed”).  

The second degree is the comparative degree, which shows the amount of a quality relative to something else that has the same quality.   In English the comparative degree is usually rendered with either the suffix “-er” or the comparative augmentative adverb “more”.  All adjectives in the comparative degree use third declension endings:

	
	Singular
	Plural

	
	Masculine
	Feminine
	Neuter
	Masculine
	Feminine
	Neuter

	Nominative

Genitive

Dative

Accusative

Ablative
	laetior

laetioris

laetiori

laetiorem

laetiore
	laetior

laetioris

laetiori

laetiorem

laetiore
	laetius

laetioris

laetiori

laetius

laetiore
	laetiores

laetiorum

laetioribus

laetiores

laetioribus
	laetiores

laetiorum

laetioribus

laetiores

laetioribus
	laetiora

laetiorum

laetioribus

laetiora

laetioribus



In Latin the comparative degree is sometimes used to show emphasis rather than a strict comparaison.  Thus you can translate laetior as either “happier” or “rather happy”.

The superlative degree is the finally degree.  The superlative shows that something is filled with the highest possible amount of a given quality.  In English the comparative is usually rendered wth the suffix “-est” or the superlative augmentative adverb “most”.  All adjectives in the superlative degree use mixed declension endings:

	
	Singular
	Plural

	
	Masculine
	Feminine
	Neuter
	Masculine
	Feminine
	Neuter

	N

G

D

Ac

Ab
	tristissimus

tristissimi

tristissimo

tristissmum

tristissimo
	tristissima

tristissimae

tristissimae

tristissmam

tristissima
	tristissimum

tristissimi

tristissimo

tristissmum

tristissimo
	tristissimi

tristissimorum

tristissimis

tristissmos

tristissimis
	tristissimae

tristissimarum

tristissimis

tristissmas

tristissimis
	tristissima

tristissimorum

tristissimis

tristissma

tristissimis


In Latin the superlative degree is sometimes used to show emphasis rather than a strict sense of the highest degree of a given quality.  Thus you can translate tristissimus as either “saddest” or “very sad”.

Comparative and Superlative of Adverbs


To form an adverb from the positive degree of a mixed declension adjective, add the ending –e.

	
	Adjective
	Adverb
	

	
	laetus, -a, -um (happy)
strenuus, -a, -um (active)
clarus, -a, -um (bright)
	laete (hapily)
strenue (actively)
clare (brightly)
	



To form an adverb from the positive degree of a third declension adjective, add the ending –iter.
	
	Adjective
	Adverb
	

	
	tristis, -is, -e (sad)
fortis, -is, -e (brave)
	tristiter (sadly)
fortiter (bravely)
	



To form an adverb from the comparative degree of any adjective add the ending –ius
	
	Adjective
	Adverb
	

	
	Laetior, -ior, -ius (happier)
tristior, -ior, -ius (sadder)
	laetius (more hapily)
tristius (more sadly)
	



To form an adverb from the superlative degree of any adjective, add the ending –issime.
	
	Adjective
	Adverb
	

	
	laetissimus, -a, -um (happiest)
tristissimus, -a, -um (saddest)
	laetissime (most happily)
tristissime (most sadly)
	


Adjectives and Adverbs with Irregular Comparative and Superlative Forms


Certain common adjectives and adverbs have irregularly formed comparative and superlative forms.  A list of these is provided in the charts below:

	
	
	Adjective
	Adverb
	

	
	Positive

Comparative

Superlative
	bonus, -a, -um

melior, -ior, -ius

optimus, -a, -um
	good

better

best
	bene

melius

optime
	well

better best
	


	
	
	Adjective
	Adverb
	

	
	Positive

Comparative

Superlative
	malus, -a, -um

peior, -ior, -ius

pessimus, -a, -um
	bad

worse

worst
	male

peius

pessime
	badly

worse

worst
	


	
	
	Adjective
	Adverb
	

	
	Positive

Comparative

Superlative
	magus, -a, -um

maior, -ior, -ius

maximus, -a, -um
	great

greater

greatest
	magnopere

maius

maxime
	greatly

more greatly

most greatly
	


	
	
	Adjective
	Adverb
	

	
	Positive

Comparative

Superlative
	multus, -a, -um

plus

plurimus, -a, -um
	much

more

most
	multo

plus

plurime
	much

more

many
	


	
	
	Adjective
	Adverb
	

	
	Positive

Comparative

Superlative
	multi, -ae, -a

plures, -es, -a

plurimi, -ae, a
	many

more

most
	Same

as

above
	



Notice that the comparative form the adjective multus, -a, -um is given as plus.  This is because the form is missing and neutwe substantive form is used in its place.


Also notice that in English the word “small” can be both an adjective and an adverb.  There is no form “smally”. 

Use of the Word “quam”


The word quam has a variety of functions:

Relative pronoun- quam is the feminine singular accusative of the word qui, quae, quod:



Aureila aliquid pecuniae ancillae dedit quam ad tabernam misit.



= Aurelia gave some money to the maid whom she sent to the store. 

Interjection- quam (meaning “How...!” can introduce a sentence showing surprise:



Quam celeriter ille tabellarius iter faciebat!



= How quickly that courier was travelling!
Interrogative- quam (meaning “How...?”) can introduce a question:



Quam grave est vulnus eius?



= How serious is his wound?

Comparisons- when following a comparative adjective or adverb quam means “than”:



Domus mea est maior quam domum tuam.



= My house is bigger than your house.
Superlatives- when preceding a superlative quam means “as...as possible”: 



Scripta epistulas mihi quam saepissime!



= Write me letters as often as possible!
Roman Dates and Years


The Romans didn’t have a seven-day week until the conversion of the empire to Christianity.  Until that point they kept track of days of the week by counting the number of days until three designated points in the month.  These three points were:


The Kalends (Kalendae, -ium f.) = the firt day of each month.


The Nones (Nonae, -arum f.) = the 5th or 7th day of the month.


The Ides (Idus, Iduum f.) = the 13th or 15th day of the month.


The Nones were usually on the 5th of each month and the Ides were usually on the 13th.  But in the months of March, May, July, and October the Nones were on the 7th and the ides were on the 15th. 


Notiee that all three of these special days above are plurals, though logically they should be singular.  Compare this to similar English words like pants.

If the date fell on one of these special days the ablative was used to express the date:



G. Iulius Caesar necabatur Idibus Martibus. 



= Gaius Julius Caesar was killed on the Ides of March.
If the date fell on the day before one of these days the word pridie was used with the accusative 


case.



Discedemus pridie Idus October.



= We will leave on the day before the Ides of October. [i.e. September 30th]

For all other dates you use the abbreviation a.d. (ante diem) plus the number of days before the 


special day (given as Roman numerals) and the special day in the accusative case:



Libertatem nostram de Anglica a.d. iii Nonas Iulias vicimus.



= We won our freedom from Britain on July 4th.


To show the year the Romans used the abbreviation A.U.C. (ab urbe condita) and a number.  The Romans believe Rome was founded in 753 B.C. so this was the date they counted from.  



M. Tullius Cicero DCXCI A.U.C. consul creavitur



= Marcus Tullius Cicero became consul in 63 B.C. [i.e. 691 year after the 









      founding of the city]

